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The Opera House was originally a four story high, four bay wide,
three bay deep field stone structure with gabled roof (running east
west) whose first floor is cut into the granite hill north of Main
Street. Twin brick chimneys are inset into its east and west walls.
Stretcher stone flat arched lintels decorate the orginal windows of
the structure. An additional two story high brick east and west bay
was added with frame third, fourth and fifth stories. 1In addition,

a brick fifth story was added to the original stome structure with briek
parapet on its south facade. The fifth story holds doubldé-hung Romanes-
que windows. Each of these windows hcld six-over-six lights decorated
with flat wooden sills and stretcher brick roman arched lintels. Hor-
izontal rectangular brick recesses are inset under each window. These
additions occured in 1857 for the present building and the west bay is
indicated in 1860 on the Martinette Map. A second and third floor
balcony and the additions on the east and west are indicated in a
photograph of the building on the border of this 1860 Map. The west

bay no longer exists. It has been replaced by one or two of the five
two bay wide, four story high brick houses lying west of the old Town
Hall.

- The fenestration of the original first four floors of the building
is rectangulalr, double-hung, holding six-over-six lights and decorated
by projecting flat wooden sills.

A1

Sometime before 1857 a further two bay wide addition was added to th
north wall which can be seen on the second and third floors of the interiér
of the building. Mr. Bibo, the present owner, believes this wall may have
been original, serving as a supporting wall. The second floor holds an
interesting fireplace on the west wall of this addition which may at one
tire have been an outside fireplace. A tunnel is located on the east wall
of this addition which goes out to the railroad bridge. See attached
contact sheet.

A one story high, flat roofed, open porch runs along the entire
south facade of the building with a cornice decorated with a row of egg
and darts and brackets.

A second floor french door is located in the third east bay featur-
ing four-four lights. At one time it led out to the second floor balcony
already mentioned as being indicated on the 1860 Martinette Map. Present-
ly used for storage and filled with second and third hand furniture and
goods, it is in great need of renovation.

Its fifh floor is entirely taken up by a large stage, orchestra and
balcony which no longer have their furniture. The original gas lamps in
the building, however, still remain intact, as well as paneling, flooring
and exceptionally wide first floor cooking fireplaces inset into the east and

—— weStwalls of the original stone building. According to the owner, Mr.
Bibo, this was used as the official stage coach stop by the Ellicotts.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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g One of the most fascinating buildings in Ellicott City, it
remains relatively undiscovered and is in need of total reha-
bilitation on the interior.
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—OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES

Circa 1780

BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Opera House or Rodey's Emporium as it has been recently called

was in the early
"West Ilchester'
"01d Stone Tavern House."

days of Ellicott Mills located on a tract of land called
and is referred to as recently as 1906 in a deed as the

Owned by Jonathan Ellicott, it is believed
to date back as early as the seventeen eighties.

In a plat of the property of Thomas Wilson dated 1875, the property

is designated as the Town Hall Lot.

In a Lithography of Main Street,

dated circa 1832 it is shown as a four bay wide, four and a half story,
gabled roof building with wide chimneys set into its east and west walls
and three dormer windows placed on the south facade of its gabled roof

which runs east-west.

front facade.

A second and third floor open porch runs along the

At some time in the mid eighteen hundreds Mr. Thomas Wilson acquired
the property (probably from the Railroad with John H. B. Latrobe as
trustee which had acquired a great deal of land in Ellicott City including

the adjoining Patapsco Hotel lot).

On July 1, 1857 it was leased by

Thomas Wilson, owner, to John Schofield for a ten year period subject
to annual ground rent of $75 payable semi-annually on the first day of

January and July.

Mr. Wilson agreed to
""good and valid deed" on the receipt of

period of the lease. (WHW 18-316).

resent Mr,

$

Schofield with a
1250 at any time during the

It was during the time of the tenure of Mr. Schofield that the
building's present appearance took shape for on the border of the Mar-
tinette Map of 1860 the present building with its romanesque windows

and parapet is featured.

On June 27, 1867, at the termination of Schofield's lease, Michael
and Evalina Bannon purchased the land and building from Thomas Wilson
for $1250, and one year later on November 28 conveyed the property to

Isaiah and Harriet Wolfersberger for $3,500 (28-516).

A plat of Mr.

Thomas Wilsons, dated 1875 and found in the Howard County Land Records,
Liber 36 folio 482, indicates this property as the Town Hall Lot.

On the 13th of April, 1906 Edward B. Powell, trustee deeded the
property ''known as the Town Hall lot to John G. Rogers, (Howard County
The deed refers to the '"western side of the wall of the 0ld

Stone Tavern House'', which is the west wall of the present. building.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

82-35).
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Owned by Mr. Andrew Bibo, this property next to the B and O
Railroad is the most significant property and building in Ellicott
City. It ante dates the Patapsco Hotel and was used as a Town
Hall. Later in the 1900's the fifth floor was used for 15¢ movies.
During Schofields ten year tenure it was used as an Opera House.
John Wilkes Booth played here, noted theatrical personality of that
day.

Presently in a fair condition, it should be placed on the
National Register of Historic Buildings and totally restored and
rehabilitated for use as an old tavern on the ground floor, a theater
on the fifth floor and a museum on the second, third and fourth floors.

In the development of tourist generators for Howard County, Ellicott
City and its historic landmarks are of primary importance. Those build-
ings located onthe north side of Main Street (Please see Ho-62, Ho-68,
Ho-86, Ho-88, Ho-89, Ho-90, Ho-94, Ho-97, Ho-98, and Ho-99) are of pri-
mary importance for they are zoned B-1l, commercial use and presently house
such uses as restaurants, antique and curio shops, barber and beauty shops
as well as office space and apartment use, Of commercial and historical
significance, the Opera House should be placedon the National Register and
restored. The use of a restored Opera House as a potential tourist generator
cannot be overemphasized. Time, money and creative ability are needed to
initiate and complete this restoration project.
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Interview with Mr. Andrew Bibo at the 0ld Town Hall, August 23, 1977.
Howard County and Ann Arundel County Record Offices.
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY __ 0. 15 Acres

Please see Attachment 1, Tax Map 25-A, p. 27

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Please see Howard County Land Record
Liber 532 Folio 46, d ores

|
LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

“' STATE . COUNTY
Maryland v ‘Howard

STATE COUNTY

[E{FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
» Cleora Barnes Thompson,Archivist
ORGANIZATION . DATE
Office of Planning & Zoning-Comprehensive Planning Section_ 465-5000 x257
STREET & NUMBER - TELEPHONE
3450 Court House Drive

CITY OR TOWN STATE

Ellicott City Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapoeliz, Maryland 21401

(301) 267-1438
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Town Hall (Opera House, Rhodey's Emporium)
8046 Main Street, Ellicott City
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Elicott City Business Notices.
ATI‘ORNEYS AT LAW,

R T IERRIOK
J. L. DUNKEL.

g

BAKER.
EDWARD NORRIS,
Practical Baker,

amilies supplied with Bread, Maryland
Biscuit, Piea, Cakes, &c.

9=Flour will be taken in ex~bange for

bresd, or baked to order.

JLACKSMITHS AND WHEEL-
WRIGHTS.

ISAAC GEO. W.

GUSTAVUS RAY.

JOHN B. HELM.

BARBER.
DANIEL COOPER.

CIGAR MANUFACTURER.
T. D. HALL.
EDITO” D PUBLISHERS.

A 1N PROGRESS,
« Wolfersberger, Editor and Propristor
Pablished every Friday, at Ellicott Qity.
Torma, $1.60 s year, is advance.

P

FRIENDS
MEETING MOUSE

1

i

/GENERAL MERCHANTS.

Fnlr DAY, T. M'KEXDREE DAY,
JOHN DAY & SON,
Pealer in Dry Goods, Boots and Sk

00ay
Hats and Cape Queens and Hard W.
Hosiery, Noﬂo’m, &c. e

A full and complete amortment of Groced
ries, Teas, &c.

AMES T. DUERLY. CHAS. ¥. BIEALY.

BIERLY BROS.

suufacturers and Dealers in Boots, Shoes|

aad Gaiters,
Main street, nearly oppasite the Howard]
House.

7]

GRANITE WORKERS.

C. F. RAPPANIER,
Qontrector of Granite Works and Masonry
in general.
Granite Quarry, Ellicott City.
A. J. ISAAGC & 8ON'8
Grauite Quarry,
Ou the B. and O. R. R, Ellicott City,
they furnish Granite Work, snel
a8 Curbing, Platforms, Sills, Bases, Lind
tels, Ashler for Bridges, Rubble Stond
for Wal lls, Ao,
CHARLES 0. ISAAC,
Granite Catter.
CHARLES J. WERNER,
Grapite Cutter.

jou oY

I}

%’/

s

LIVERY STABLES.

B. F. KUHN,
Livery Btable, Coal and Wood Yard.
Box, 78.
JOSRUA “¥. DORSEY,
Dealer in Coal and Fertilizers of all kinds

Horses and Vahicles of all ainds to hire,
and Horees takes at Livery.

PHYSICIAN.
THOMAS B. OWINGS.

POST MASTER.
ROBERT N. WHARRY.
STATIONER.

J. 8. STRAWBRIDGE.

BLLICOTT CITY TIMES,
Jebo R. Brown, Jr., Editor sad Prop'r.
Pudlisbed svery Baturday, at Eilicott City
Terma, $2.00 & yoar, in advance.
g

TAILOR.
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C. P. CASSIDRY.
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